Table of Contents

Series 500 – Students

104 ANTI-BULLYING/ANTI-HARASSMENT POLICY	2
104.R1 ANTI-BULLYING/ANTI-HARASSMENT INVESTIGATION PROCEDURES	4
302.7 SUPERINTENDENT CIVIC ACTIVITIES	6
302.8 SUPERINTENDENT CONSULTING/OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT	7
404.R1 CODE OF PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT AND ETHICS REGULATION	8
415.1 EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE – CLASSIFIED STAFF	13
415.1E1 APPLICATION FOR EARLY RETIREMENT AND RESIGNATION, WAIVER AND RELEASE, A COVENANT NOT TO REAPPLY	
504 STUDENT ACTIVITIES	15
504.1 STUDENT GOVERNMENT	15
504.2 STUDENT ORGANIZATIONS	16
504.3 STUDENT PUBLICATIONS	18
504.3R1 STUDENT PUBLICATIONS CODE	19
504.4 STUDENT PERFORMANCES	21
504.5 STUDENT FUND RAISING	22
504.6 STUDENT ACTIVITY PROGRAM	23
504.7 SOCIAL EVENTS	24
504.8 GUIDELINES FOR SETTING ADMISSION FEES AND HANDLING SCHOOL ACTIVITY PASSES	
504.9 CLASS FUNDS	26
710.4 MEAL CHARGES	27

104 ANTI-BULLYING/ANTI-HARASSMENT POLICY

The Central Lyon Community School District is committed to providing all students, employees, and volunteers with a safe and civil school environment in which all members of the school community are treated with dignity and respect. Bullying and/or harassing behavior can seriously disrupt the ability of school employees to maintain a safe and civil environment, and the ability of students to learn and succeed.

Bullying and/or harassment of or by students, employees, and volunteers is against federal, state, and local policy and is not tolerated by the board.

Accordingly, school employees, volunteers, and students shall not engage in bullying or harassing behavior while on school property, while on school-owned or school-operated vehicles, while attending or participating in school-sponsored or sanctioned activities, and while away from school grounds if the conduct materially interferes with the orderly operation of the educational environment or is likely to do so.

Complaints may be filed with the superintendent or superintendent's designee pursuant to the regulation accompanying this policy. Complaints will be investigated within a reasonable time frame.

A school employee, volunteer, or student, or a student's parent or guardian who promptly, reasonably, and in good faith reports an incident of bullying or harassment, in compliance with the procedures in the regulation, to the appropriate school official designated by the school district, shall be immune from civil or criminal liability relating to such report and to participation in any administrative or judicial proceeding resulting from or relating to the report.

Retaliation Prohibited

Individuals who knowingly file false bullying or harassment complaints and any person who gives false statements in an investigation may be subject to discipline by appropriate measures.

Any student found to have violated or retaliated in violation of this policy shall be subject to measures up to, and including, suspension and expulsion. Any school employee found to have violated or retaliated in violation of this policy shall be subject to measures up to, and including, termination of employment. Any school volunteer found to have violated or retaliated in violation of this policy shall be subject to measures up to, and including, removal from service and exclusion from school grounds.

Definitions

For the purposes of this policy, the defined words shall have the following meaning:

- "Electronic" means any communication involving the transmission of information by wire, radio, optic cable, electromagnetic, or other similar means. "Electronic" includes but is not limited to communication via electronic mail, internet-based communications, pager service, cell phones, and electronic text messaging. "Harassment" and "bullying" mean any repeated or potentially repeated electronic, written, verbal, or physical act or other ongoing conduct toward an individual based on any trait or characteristic of the individual which creates an objectively hostile school environment that meets one or more of the following conditions:
 - (1) Places the individual in reasonable fear of harm to the individual's person or property.
 - (2) Has a substantial detrimental effect on the individual's physical or mental health.
 - (3) Has the effect of substantially interfering with the individual's academic or career performance. Has the effect of substantially interfering with the individual's ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by a school.
- "Trait or characteristic of the individual" includes but is not limited to age, color, creed, national origin, race, religion, marital status, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, physical attributes, physical or mental ability or disability, ancestry, political party preference, political belief, socioeconomic status, or familial status.

"Volunteer" means an individual who has regular, significant contact with students.

Publication of Policy

The board will annually publish this policy. The policy may be publicized by the following means:

- Inclusion in the student handbook,
- Inclusion in the employee handbook
- Inclusion in the registration materials
- Inclusion on the school or school district's web site,
- (other) _____

Legal References: 20 U.S.C. §§ 1221-1234i.

29 U.S.C. § 794.

42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d-2000d-7. 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 2*et. seq.* lowa Code §§ 216.9; 280.28; 280.3.

281 I.A.C. 12.3(6).

Morse v. Frederick, 551 U.S. 393 (2007)

Cross References: 102 Equal Educational Opportunity

502 Student Rights and Responsibilities

503 Student Discipline506 Student Records

Approved 6/11/07 Reviewed 11/14/16 Revised 11/14/16

104.R1 ANTI-BULLYING/ANTI-HARASSMENT INVESTIGATION PROCEDURES

Filing a Complaint

An individual who believes that the individual has been harassed or bullied may file a complaint with the superintendent or superintendent's designee. The complaint form is available here [will link to form 104.E1]. An alternate investigator will be designated in the event it is claimed that the superintendent or superintendent's designee committed the alleged bullying or harassment or some other conflict of interest exists. Complaints shall be filed within 180 days of the event giving rise to the complaint or from the date the Complainant could reasonably become aware of such occurrence. The Complainant will state the nature of the complaint and the remedy requested. The Complainant shall receive assistance as needed.

Investigation

The school district will promptly and reasonably investigate allegations of bullying or harassment upon receipt of a written complaint. The building principal (hereinafter "Investigator") will be responsible for handling all complaints alleging bullying or harassment.

The investigation may include, but is not limited to the following:

- Interviews with the Complainant and the individual named in the complaint ("Respondent")
- A request for the Complainant to provide a written statement regarding the nature of the complaint;
- A request for the Respondent to provide a written statement;
- Interviews with witnesses identified during the course of the investigation;
- A request for witnesses identified during the course of the investigation to provide a written statement;
 and
- Review and collection of documentation or information deemed relevant to the investigation.

The Investigator shall consider the totality of circumstances presented in determining whether conduct objectively constitutes bullying or harassment as defined in Board policy. Upon completion of the investigation, the Investigator shall issue a report with respect to the findings, and provide a copy of the report to the appropriate building principal or Superintendent if the investigation involved the building principal

The complaint and identity of the Complainant, Respondent, or witnesses will only be disclosed as reasonably necessary in connection with the investigation or as required by law or policy. Similarly, evidence uncovered in the investigation shall be kept confidential to the extent reasonably possible.

Additional suggestions for administrative procedures regarding this policy include:

- Organizing training programs for students, school employees, and volunteers regarding how to recognize bullying and harassing behavior and what to do if this behavior is witnessed; and
- Developing a process for evaluating the effectiveness of this policy in reducing bullying and harassing behavior.

Decision

The investigator, building principal or superintendent, depending on the individuals involved, shall inform the Complainant and the accused about the outcome of the investigation. If, after an investigation, a student is found to be in violation of the policy, the student shall be disciplined by appropriate measures, which may include suspension and expulsion. If after an investigation a school employee is found to be in violation of this policy, the employee shall be disciplined by appropriate measures, which may include termination. If after an investigation a school volunteer is found to be in violation of this policy, the volunteer shall be subject to appropriate measures, which may include exclusion from school grounds.

Individuals who knowingly file false bullying and/or harassment complaints and any person who gives false statements in an investigation may be subject to discipline by appropriate measures, as shall any person who is found to have retaliated against another in violation of this policy. Any student found to have retaliated in violation of this policy shall be subject to measures up to, and including, suspension and expulsion. Any school

employee found to have retaliated in violatio termination of employment. Any school volu subject to measures up to, and including, ex	on of this policy shall be su unteer found to have retali aclusion from school grour	ubject to measures up to, an ated in violation of this policends.	d including, y shall be

302.7 SUPERINTENDENT CIVIC ACTIVITIES

The board	l encourages t	the superinten	dent to be i	involved i	n the scho	ol district	community I	by belor	nging to	school
district cor	mmunity orgai	nizations and a	ttending a	nd partici	pating in s	chool dist	rict commun	ity activ	ities.	

It is the responsibility of the superintendent to become involved in school district community activities and events. It is within the discretion of the board to pay annual fees for professional organizations and activities.

Legal Reference: lowa Code § 279.8

Cross Reference: 302.3 Superintendent Salary and Other Compensation

303.8 Administrator Civic Activities

Approved <u>6/12/95</u> Reviewed <u>3/11/19</u> Revised <u>6/12/95</u>

302.8 SUPERINTENDENT CONSULTING/OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT

The superintendent is considered a full-time employee. The board expects the superintendent to give the responsibilities of the position precedence over other employment. The superintendent may accept consulting or outside employment for pay as long as, in the judgment of the board, the work is conducted on the superintendent's personal time and it does not interfere with the performance of the superintendent's duties.

The board reserves the right, however, to request that the superintendent cease the outside employment as a condition of continued employment. The board will give the superintendent thirty days notice to cease outside employment.

Legal Reference:	Iowa Code §§ 2	Iowa Code §§ 279.8, .20 (2013).				
Cross Reference:	·	ntendent Contract and C ntendent Duties	ontract Nonrenewal			
	Approved	Reviewed	Revised			

404.R1 CODE OF PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT AND ETHICS REGULATION

CHAPTER 25

282—25.1(272) Scope of standards. This code of professional conduct and ethics constitutes mandatory minimum standards of practice for all licensed practitioners as defined in Iowa Code chapter 272. The adherence to certain professional and ethical standards is essential to maintaining the integrity of the education profession.

282—25.2(272) Definitions. Except where otherwise specifically defined by law:

"Administrative and supervisory personnel" means any licensed employee such as superintendent, associate superintendent, assistant superintendent, principal, associate principal, assistant principal, or other person who does not have as a primary duty the instruction of pupils in the schools.

"Board" means the lowa board of educational examiners.

"Discipline" means the process of sanctioning a license, certificate or authorization issued by the board.

"Ethics" means a set of principles governing the conduct of all persons governed by these rules.

"Fraud" means knowingly providing false information or representations on an application for licensure or employment, or knowingly providing false information or representations made in connection with the discharge of duties.

"License" means any license, certificate, or authorization granted by the board.

"Licensee" means any person holding a license, certificate, or authorization granted by the board.

"Practitioner" means an administrator, teacher, or other licensed professional, including an individual who holds a statement of professional recognition, who provides educational assistance to students.

"Responsibility" means a duty for which a person is accountable by virtue of licensure.

"Right" means a power, privilege, or immunity secured to a person by law.

"Student" means a person, regardless of age, enrolled in a prekindergarten through grade 12 school, who is receiving direct or indirect assistance from a person licensed by the board.

"Teacher" means any person engaged in the instructional program for prekindergarten through grade 12 children, including a person engaged in teaching, administration, and supervision, and who is required by law to be licensed for the position held.

[ARC 7979B, IAB 7/29/09, effective 9/2/09]

282—25.3(272) Standards of professional conduct and ethics. Licensees are required to abide by all federal, state, and local laws applicable to the fulfillment of professional obligations. Violation of federal, state, or local laws in the fulfillment of professional obligations constitutes unprofessional and unethical conduct which can result in disciplinary action by the board. In addition, it is hereby deemed unprofessional and unethical for any licensee to violate any of the following standards of professional conduct and ethics:

25.3(1) Standard I—conviction of crimes, sexual or other immoral conduct with or toward a student, and child and dependent adult abuse. Violation of this standard includes:

- a. Fraud. Fraud means the same as defined in rule 282—25.2(272).
- *b. Criminal convictions.* The commission of or conviction for a criminal offense as defined by Iowa law provided that the offense is relevant to or affects teaching or administrative performance.

- (1) Disqualifying criminal convictions. The board shall deny an application for licensure and shall revoke a previously issued license if the applicant or licensee has, on or after July 1, 2002, been convicted of, has pled guilty to, or has been found guilty of the following criminal offenses, regardless of whether the judgment of conviction or sentence was deferred:
- 1. Any of the following forcible felonies included in Iowa Code section 702.11: child endangerment, assault, murder, sexual abuse, or kidnapping;
- 2. Any of the following criminal sexual offenses, as provided in Iowa Code chapter 709, involving a child:
 - First-, second- or third-degree sexual abuse committed on or with a person who is under the age of 18;
 - Lascivious acts with a child;
 - Assault with intent to commit sexual abuse;
 - Indecent contact with a child;
 - Sexual exploitation by a counselor;
 - Lascivious conduct with a minor;
 - Sexual exploitation by a school employee;
 - o Enticing a minor under Iowa Code section 710.10; or
 - Human trafficking under Iowa Code section 710A.2;
 - 3. Incest involving a child as prohibited by Iowa Code section 726.2;
- 4. Dissemination and exhibition of obscene material to minors as prohibited by Iowa Code section 728.2;
- 5. Telephone dissemination of obscene material to minors as prohibited by Iowa Code section 728.15:
- 6. Any offense specified in the laws of another jurisdiction, or any offense that may be prosecuted in a federal, military, or foreign court, that is comparable to an offense listed in subparagraph 25.3(1) "b"(1); or
- 7. Any offense under prior laws of this state or another jurisdiction, or any offense under prior law that was prosecuted in a federal, military, or foreign court, that is comparable to an offense listed in subparagraph 25.3(1)"b"(1).
- (2) Other criminal convictions and founded child abuse. In determining whether a person should be denied a license or whether a licensee should be disciplined based upon any other criminal conviction, including a conviction for an offense listed in 25.3(1)"b"(1) which occurred before July 1, 2002, or a founded report of abuse of a child, the board shall consider:
 - 1. The nature and seriousness of the crime or founded abuse in relation to the position sought;
 - 2. The time elapsed since the crime or founded abuse was committed;
- 3. The degree of rehabilitation which has taken place since the crime or founded abuse was committed;
 - 4. The likelihood that the person will commit the same crime or abuse again;
 - 5. The number of criminal convictions or founded abuses committed; and
- 6. Such additional factors as may in a particular case demonstrate mitigating circumstances or heightened risk to public safety.
- c. Sexual involvement or indecent contact with a student. Sexual involvement includes, but is not limited to, the following acts, whether consensual or nonconsensual: fondling or touching the inner thigh, groin, buttocks, anus or breasts of a student; permitting or causing to fondle or touch the practitioner's inner thigh, groin, buttocks, anus, or breasts; or the commission of any sex act as defined in Iowa Code section 702.17.
- d. Sexual exploitation of a minor. The commission of or any conviction for an offense prohibited by Iowa Code section 728.12, Iowa Code chapter 709 or 18 U.S.C. Section 2252A(a)(5)(B).
- *e.* Student abuse. Licensees shall maintain professional relationships with all students, both inside and outside the classroom. The following acts or behavior constitutes unethical conduct without regard to the existence of a criminal charge or conviction:

- (1) Committing any act of physical abuse of a student;
- (2) Committing any act of dependent adult abuse on a dependent adult student;
- (3) Committing or soliciting any sexual or otherwise indecent act with a student or any minor;
- (4) Soliciting, encouraging, or consummating a romantic or otherwise inappropriate relationship with a student;
- (5) Furnishing alcohol or illegal or unauthorized drugs or drug paraphernalia to any student or knowingly allowing a student to consume alcohol or illegal or unauthorized drugs in the presence of the licensee:
 - (6) Failing to report any suspected act of child or dependent adult abuse as required by state law; or
- (7) Committing or soliciting any sexual conduct as defined in Iowa Code section 709.15(3) "b" or soliciting, encouraging, or consummating a romantic relationship with any person who was a student within 90 days prior to any conduct alleged in the complaint, if that person was taught by the practitioner or was supervised by the practitioner in any school activity when that person was a student.
 - **25.3(2)** Standard II—alcohol or drug abuse. Violation of this standard includes:
- a. Being on school premises or at a school-sponsored activity involving students while under the influence of, possessing, using, or consuming illegal or unauthorized drugs or abusing legal drugs.
- *b*. Being on school premises or at a school-sponsored activity involving students while under the influence of, possessing, using, or consuming alcohol.
- **25.3(3)** Standard III—misrepresentation, falsification of information. Violation of this standard includes:
- a. Falsifying or deliberately misrepresenting or omitting material information regarding professional qualifications, criminal history, college credit, staff development credit, degrees, academic award, or employment history when applying for employment or licensure.
- *b*. Falsifying or deliberately misrepresenting or omitting material information regarding compliance reports submitted to federal, state, and other governmental agencies.
- *c.* Falsifying or deliberately misrepresenting or omitting material information submitted in the course of an official inquiry or investigation.
- *d.* Falsifying any records or information submitted to the board in compliance with the license renewal requirements imposed under 282—Chapter 20.
- e. Falsifying or deliberately misrepresenting or omitting material information regarding the evaluation of students or personnel, including improper administration of any standardized tests, including, but not limited to, changing test answers, providing test answers, copying or teaching identified test items, or using inappropriate accommodations or modifications for such tests.
 - **25.3(4)** Standard IV—misuse of public funds and property. Violation of this standard includes:
- *a*. Failing to account properly for funds collected that were entrusted to the practitioner in an educational context.
 - *b.* Converting public property or funds to the personal use of the practitioner.
 - c. Submitting fraudulent requests for reimbursement of expenses or for pay.
 - d. Combining public or school-related funds with personal funds.
 - e. Failing to use time or funds granted for the purpose for which they were intended.
 - **25.3(5)** Standard V—violations of contractual obligations.
 - a. Violation of this standard includes:
- (1) Asking a practitioner to sign a written professional employment contract before the practitioner has been unconditionally released from a current contract, unless the practitioner provided notice to the practitioner's employing board as set forth in subparagraph 25.3(5) "b"(2).
- (2) Abandoning a written professional employment contract without prior unconditional release by the employer.
- (3) As an employer, executing a written professional employment contract with a practitioner which requires the performance of duties that the practitioner is not legally qualified to perform.

- (4) As a practitioner, executing a written professional employment contract which requires the performance of duties that the practitioner is not legally qualified to perform.
- *b.* In addressing complaints based upon contractual obligations, the board shall consider factors beyond the practitioner's control. For purposes of enforcement of this standard, a practitioner will not be found to have abandoned an existing contract if:
- (1) The practitioner obtained a release from the employing board before discontinuing services under the contract; or
- (2) The practitioner provided notice to the employing board no later than the latest of the following dates:
 - 1. The practitioner's last work day of the school year;
 - 2. The date set for return of the contract as specified in statute; or
 - June 30.
- **25.3(6)** Standard VI—unethical practice toward other members of the profession, parents, students, and the community. Violation of this standard includes:
 - a. Denying the student, without just cause, access to varying points of view.
 - b. Deliberately suppressing or distorting subject matter for which the educator bears responsibility.
- *c.* Failing to make reasonable effort to protect the health and safety of the student or creating conditions harmful to student learning.
- *d.* Conducting professional business in such a way that the practitioner repeatedly exposes students or other practitioners to unnecessary embarrassment or disparagement.
- *e.* Engaging in any act of illegal discrimination, or otherwise denying a student or practitioner participation in the benefits of any program on the grounds of race, creed, color, religion, age, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, marital status, or national origin.
- *f.* Soliciting students or parents of students to purchase equipment, supplies, or services from the practitioner for the practitioner's personal advantage.
- *g.* Accepting gifts from vendors or potential vendors where there may be the appearance of or an actual conflict of interest.
- h. Intentionally disclosing confidential information including, but not limited to, unauthorized sharing of information concerning student academic or disciplinary records, health and medical information, assessment or testing results, or family income. Licensees shall comply with state and federal laws and local school board policies relating to the confidentiality of student records, unless disclosure is required or permitted by law.
 - *i.* Refusing to participate in a professional inquiry when requested by the board.
- *j*. Aiding, assisting, or abetting an unlicensed person in the completion of acts for which licensure is required.
- k. Failing to self-report to the board within 60 days any founded child abuse report, or any conviction for a criminal offense listed in 25.3(1)"b"(1) which requires revocation of the practitioner's license.
 - Delegating tasks to unqualified personnel.
- m. Failing to comply with federal, state, and local laws applicable to the fulfillment of professional obligations.
 - *n*. Allowing another person to use one's practitioner license for any purpose.
- *o*. Performing services beyond the authorized scope of practice for which the individual is licensed or prepared or performing services without holding a valid license.
 - p. Falsifying, forging, or altering a license issued by the board.
- *q*. Failure of the practitioner holding a contract under lowa Code section 279.13 to disclose to the school official responsible for determining assignments a teaching assignment for which the practitioner is not properly licensed.
- r. Failure of a school official responsible for assigning licensed practitioners holding contracts under Iowa Code section 279.13 to adjust an assignment if the practitioner discloses to the official that the practitioner is not properly licensed for an assignment.

- **25.3(7)** Standard VII—compliance with state law governing obligations to state or local governments, child support obligations, and board orders. Violation of this standard includes:
 - a. Failing to comply with 282—Chapter 8 concerning payment of debts to state or local governments.
 - *b.* Failing to comply with 282—Chapter 10 concerning child support obligations.
 - c. Failing to comply with a board order.
 - 25.3(8) Standard VIII—incompetence. Violation of this standard includes, but is not limited to:
- *a.* Willfully or repeatedly departing from or failing to conform to the minimum standards of acceptable and prevailing educational practice in the state of lowa.
 - b. Willfully or repeatedly failing to practice with reasonable skill and safety.

415.1 EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE - CLASSIFIED STAFF

The Central Lyon Community School District shall provide the following benefits for early retirement:

- 1. Classified staff shall be eligible to elect early retirement if they meet the following criteria:
 - a. Have attained age 61 by June 30, of the eligible to elect year
 - b. Have completed the equivalent of 20 years of continuous full-time employment in the district.
- 2. This early retirement benefit is not available for persons who have received a notice of termination under chapter 279 of the *Iowa Code*, or on an intensive assistance, or are in a probationary status.
- 3. The early retirement benefit is not available to a person who is on an extended unpaid leave of absence.
- 4. Persons qualifying for this retirement shall receive as compensation a benefit equal to \$24,000 dollars, to be paid by the district to a Health Reimbursement Arrangement to be used as directed by the employee for eligible medical expenses and premiums. Compensation will be distributed in the amount of \$12,000 per year for two (2) years.
- 5. Election must be made on the forms provided by March 6 of the year of retirement.
- 6. The medical insurance program may be modified on an annual basis by the District.
- 7. These early retirement benefits are a one-time benefit and any individual electing early retirement will be required to acknowledge that any future employment which is performed at the request of the District shall not entitle the employee to elect on a second occasion an early retirement benefit or claim any rights under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act.

Retiring Employee	Date
Superintendent of Schools	Date

Approved	Reviewed	Revised
Abbioved	Reviewed	Reviseu

415.1E1 APPLICATION FOR EARLY RETIREMENT AND RESIGNATION, WAIVER AND RELEASE, AND COVENANT NOT TO REAPPLY

The undersigned hereby makes application for early retirement benefits of the Central-Lyon Community School District. Name: Date: Age as of June 30, 20 : Full-time equivalent years of service: Average Percent of Employment to 100%: Benefits of \$24,000 (\$12,000 per year for two years) will be applied to the district's available Health Reimbursement Arrangement for use by retiree. I hereby make this application on the ____ day of ______, 20___ with the understanding I have seven (7) days to withdraw this application and forego the benefit amounts. I understand by withdrawing the application for early retirement benefits, it is not a guarantee of future employment with the District. I represent I have been told to consult an attorney. I have not been pressured to sign. I hereby waive any and all rights under the Older Workers Benefit and Protection Act and Age Discrimination In Employment Act (ADEA) and specifically release the District from any potential claims for age discrimination. I understand by making application for early retirement benefits that is a one-time benefit and I not only am releasing the District from the statutory claims based on my age and current occupation but I am also giving to the District a covenant not to reapply with the District in the future. I understand that any future employment with the District would be available solely at the request of the District and that if I make application with the District and am not granted employment, I do not have any rights or claims under the Older Workers Benefit and Protection Act or the Age Discrimination In Employment Act. I am asking the Board of Directors to consider this application as my resignation from current employment. which resignation will be effective June 30, 20 . Retiring Employee Date This application was accepted by the Board of Directors this day of . . .

Board Secretary

Date

504 STUDENT ACTIVITIES

504.1 STUDENT GOVERNMENT

The student council provides for student activities, serves as a training experience for student leaders, promotes the common good, gives students a share in the management of the school, develops high ideals of personal conduct, acts as a clearinghouse for student activities, seeks to interest students in school district affairs and helps solve problems that may arise. Members of the council are student representatives who have direct access to the administration.

The principal, in conjunction with the students and licensed employees, will set forth the guidelines for the student government's elections, operations, and other elements of the government.

Legal Reference: lowa Code § 279.8 (2013).

Cross Reference: 502 Student Rights and Responsibilities

504 Student Activities

Approved 7/17/95 Reviewed 10/13/14 Revised 7/17/95

504.2 STUDENT ORGANIZATIONS

Extra-curricular activities of students are recognized as essential and desirable for the school program and are deemed worthy of liberal financial support; but extravagant or wasteful expenditure of money is to be scrupulously avoided.

All student activities of the Central Lyon Community School District shall be under the control and supervision of the superintendent; but the superintendent will, at his/her discretion, delegate direct supervision of such student organization and activities that may be within the Central Lyon School.

Secondary school student-initiated, noncurriculum-related groups and student curriculum-related groups, upon receiving permission from the principal, may use school facilities for group meetings during non-instructional time.

Non-instructional time will mean any time before the first (1st) period of the day and after the last period of the day in which any student attends class. Meetings will not interfere with the orderly conduct of the education program or other school district operations. It is within the discretion of the principal to determine whether the meetings will interfere with the orderly conduct of the education program or other school district operations. Activities relating to and part of the education program will have priority over the activities of another organization.

Curriculum-Related Organizations

It will also be the responsibility of the principal to determine whether a student group is curriculum-related. One (1) or more of the following questions will be answered affirmatively if the group is curriculum-related:

- Is the subject matter of the group actually taught in a regularly offered course?
- Will the subject matter of the group soon be taught in a regularly offered course?
- Does the subject matter of the group concern the body of courses as a whole?
- Is participation in the group required for a particular course?
- Does participation in the group result in academic credit?

Secondary school curriculum-related student organizations may use the school district facilities for meetings and other purposes before and after the instructional school day. Employees are assigned to monitor approved meetings and may interact with curriculum-related organizations.

Noncurriculum-Related Organizations

Student-initiated, noncurriculum-related organizations are provided access to meeting space and school district facilities.

Only students may attend and participate in meetings of noncurriculum-related groups. Such attendance is strictly voluntary and student-initiated. As a means of determining whether a student's attendance is voluntary, the principal may require parental consent for the student to attend the meetings.

Employees will be assigned to monitor approved meetings. Employees will not participate in the meeting or assist in planning, criticizing, or encouraging attendance. Only students may be involved in and attend the noncurriculum group's meetings.

It is the responsibility of the superintendent, in conjunction with the principal, to develop administrative regulations regarding this policy.

Student Organization Financials

All student organizations and classes will keep complete and accurate financial and business records. All classes and organizations will budget their spending within their financial receipts. In other words, each organization and class must be self-supporting.

All student activity monies will be deposited with the secretary of the Superintendent who will keep complete and accurate records of the accounts of each organization, class and/or activity, pursuant to statute.

No member of the student body or faculty shall be permitted to solicit funds or merchandise for any activity without the approval of the Superintendent. All money raising activities must be approved by the School Board.

Non-School Participation During Sport Season

Student athletes in grades 9-12 who want to participate in a non-school sport during the same school sport season MUST have written permission from the high school principal. If the high school principal is unavailable, written permission must be obtained from the athletic director. Non-school participation may NOT conflict with a school sport practice or game. Violation of the policy will result in a 12 month ineligibility in that same sport as required by the IHSAA, IGHSAU, and the Department of Education.

Legal Reference: Westside Community Board of Education v Mergens, 496 U.S. 226 (1990).

Bender v. Williamsport Area Community School District, 741 F.2d 538 (3d Cir. 1984),

vacated and remanded on other grounds, 475 U.S. 534 (1986).

20 U.S.C. §§ 4071-4074 (2012). lowa Code §§ 287.1-.3; 297.9 (2013).

Cross Reference: 502 Student Rights and Responsibilities

504 Student Activities

Approved 7/17/95 Reviewed 10/13/14 Revised 7/17/95

504.3 STUDENT PUBLICATIONS

Students may produce official school publications as part of the curriculum under the supervision of a faculty advisor and the principal. Official school publications include material produced in the journalism, newspaper, yearbook, or writing classes and distributed to the student body either free, for a fee, or in the Lyon County Reporter.

Any expression made by students, including student expression in official school publications, is not an expression of official school policy. The school district, the board, and the employees or officials are not liable in any civil or criminal action for any student expression made or published by students unless the employees or officials have interfered with or altered the content of the student speech or expression. The liability, if any, is only to the extent of the interference or alteration of the speech or expression.

Official school publications are free from prior restraint by employees or officials except as provided by law. A faculty advisor will supervise student writers to maintain professional standards of English and journalism and to comply with the law including, but not limited to, the restrictions against unlawful speech. The production of official school publications is guided by the law and by the ethical standards adopted by professional associations or societies of journalism.

Persons, other than students, who believe they have been aggrieved by student expression in a student-produced official school publication will follow the grievance procedure outlined in board policy 213.1. Students who believe their freedom of expression in a student-produced official school publication has been restricted will follow the grievance procedure outlined in board policy 502.

The superintendent is responsible for developing a student publications code. This code will include, but not be limited to, reasonable rules including time, place, and manner of restrictions. The superintendent will also be responsible for distributing this policy and the student publications code to the students and their parents.

Legal Reference: <u>Hazelwood School District v. Kuhlmeier</u>, 484 U.S. 260 (1988).

Bystrom v. Fridley High School, 822 F.2d 747 (8th Cir. 1987).

Iowa Code § 280.22.

Cross Reference: 307 Communication Channels

502 Student Rights and Responsibilities

504 Student Activities903.5 Distribution of Material

Approved <u>7/17/95</u> Reviewed <u>10/13/14</u> Revised <u>7/17/95</u>

504.3R1 STUDENT PUBLICATIONS CODE

A. Official school publications defined.

An "official school publication" is material produced by students in the journalism, newspaper, yearbook, or writing classes and distributed to students either free or for a fee or in the Lyon County Reporter.

- B. Expression in an official school publication.
 - 1. No student will express, publish or distribute in an official school publication material which is:
 - a. obscene:
 - b. libelous:
 - c. slanderous; or encourages students to:
 - 1) commit unlawful acts:
 - 2) violate school rules;
 - 3) cause the material and substantial disruption of the orderly and efficient operation of the school or school activity;
 - 4) disrupt or interfere with the education program;
 - 5) interrupt the maintenance of a disciplined atmosphere; or
 - 6) infringe on the rights of others.
 - 2. The official school publication is produced under the supervision of a faculty advisor.

C. Responsibilities of students.

- Students writing or editing official school publications will assign and edit the news, editorial and feature
 contents of the official school publications subject to the limitations of the student publications code and
 the law
- 2. Students will strive to achieve professional standards of accuracy, fairness, objectivity and thoroughness in each and every aspect of official school publications.
- 3. Students will strive to achieve professional standards of grammar, usage, punctuation and spelling for clarity and accuracy of official school publications.

D. Responsibilities of faculty advisors.

Faculty advisors will supervise student writers to maintain professional standards of English and journalism and to comply with the law including, but not limited to, the restrictions against unlawful speech.

E. Liability.

Student expression in an official school publication will not be deemed to be an expression of the school district. The school district, the board, and the employees or officials are not liable in any civil or criminal action for any student expression made or published by students unless the employees or officials have interfered with or altered the content of the student expression. The liability, if any, is only to the extent of interference or alteration of the speech or expression.

F. Appeal procedure.

- 1. Students who believe they have been unreasonably restricted in their exercise of expression in an official student publication will seek review of the decision through the student grievance procedure, under board policy 502.414.
- 2. Persons who believe they have been aggrieved by a student-produced official student publication will file their complaint through the citizen grievance procedure, under board policy 213.1.

- G. Time, place and manner of restrictions on official school publications.
 - 1. Official student publications may be distributed in a reasonable manner on or off school premises.
 - 2. Distribution in a reasonable manner will not encourage students to:
 - a. commit unlawful acts;
 - b. violate school rules;
 - c. cause the material and substantial disruption of the orderly and efficient operation of the school district or school activity;
 - d. disrupt or interfere with the education program;
 - e. interrupt the maintenance of a disciplined atmosphere; or
 - f. infringe on the rights of others.

504.4 STUDENT PERFORMANCES

Students, as part of the education program, may participate in contests or other public and private events approved by the superintendent that will be of benefit to the student and the education program. Performance at such events is a privilege.

Students, who perform at such events, serve as ambassadors of the school district and must conduct themselves in the same manner as required in the regular school day. Students who fail to abide by this policy and the administrative regulations supporting it may be subject to disciplinary measures.

Students will be allowed to perform in these events only with proper permission and supervision and when the events do not disrupt the education program or other school district operations. The events must be approved by the superintendent or his designee. If it involves unusual travel and expense, the board must approve of the performance.

Events in which Central Lyon students participate during school hours or as representatives of the school but at locations outside the school must be sponsored and supervised by professional school personnel. Rules of behavior/conduct shall be the same at any in-school activity or event.

It is the responsibility of the superintendent, in conjunction with the principal, to develop administrative regulations regarding this policy. In developing the administrative regulations, these guidelines should be followed:

- Performances by student groups below the high school level should be allowed on a very limited basis;
- All groups of students should have an opportunity to participate; and
- Extensive travel by one group of students should be discouraged.

It is within the discretion of the superintendent to determine whether the event will benefit the education program and the participating students. Contests or other performances by students unapproved by the superintendent are the responsibility of the parent and the student.

Legal Reference: Hazelwood School District v. Kuhlmeier, 484 U.S. 260 (1988).

Iowa Code §§ 280.13-.14 (2013).

281 I.A.C. 12.6.

Cross Reference: 502 Student Rights and Responsibilities

503.4 Good Conduct Rule504 Student Activities

904 Community Activities Involving Students

Approved <u>7/17/95</u> Reviewed <u>10/13/14</u> Revised <u>7/17/95</u>

504.5 STUDENT FUND RAISING

Students may raise funds for school-sponsored events with the permission of the principal. Fund raising by students for events other than school-sponsored events is not allowed. Collection boxes for school fund raising must have prior approval from the principal before being placed on school property.

It is the responsibility of the superintendent, in conjunction with the principal, to develop administrative regulations regarding this policy.

Legal Reference: <u>Senior Class of Pekin High School v. Tharp</u>, 154 N.W.2d 874 (Iowa 1967).

Iowa Code § 279.8 (2013).

Cross Reference: 502 Student Rights and Responsibilities

503 Student Discipline
504 Student Activities
704.5 Student Activities Fund
905.2 Advertising and Promotion

Approved <u>7/17/95</u> Reviewed <u>10/13/14</u> Revised <u>7/17/95</u>

504.6 STUDENT ACTIVITY PROGRAM

Participation in school activities is a privilege. School activities provide the benefits of promoting additional interests and ability in the students during their school years and for their lifetime.

Students will have an opportunity to participate in a school activity unless the activity is not offered or the student cannot participate for disciplinary reasons. If the activity is an intramural or interscholastic athletic activity, students of the opposite sex will have a comparable opportunity for participation. Comparable opportunity does not guarantee boys and girls will be allowed to play on each other's teams when there are athletic activities available that will allow both boys and girls to reap the benefits of school activities, which are the promotion of additional interests and abilities in the students.

Student activity events must be approved by the superintendent unless they involve unusual travel expense, in which case the board will take action. The events must not disrupt the education program or other school district operations.

A high school student who participates in school sponsored athletics may participate in a non-school sponsored sport during the same season with approval of the high school principal and the activities director. Such outside participation will not conflict with the school sponsored athletic activity.

It is the responsibility of the superintendent to develop administrative regulations for each school activity. These regulations will include, but not be limited to, when physical examinations will be required, how and when parents will be informed about the risk of the activity, academic requirements, and proof of insurance on the student participating in certain activities. Students wanting to participate in school activities must meet the requirements set out by the school district for participation in the activity.

Legal Reference: 20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683; 1685-1686 (2012).

34 C.F.R. Pt. 106.41 (2012).

lowa Code §§ 216.9; 280.13-.14 (2013). 281 I.A.C. 12.3(6), 12.6., 36.15(7).

Cross Reference: 501 Student Attendance

502 Student Rights and Responsibilities

503 Student Discipline504 Student Activities

507 Student Health and Well-Being

Approved <u>7/17/95</u> Reviewed <u>10/13/14</u> Revised <u>11/14/05</u>

504.7 SOCIAL EVENTS

All school sponsored social events shall be under the control and supervision of professional school personnel. Approval for an event shall be secured from the building principal involved before any public announcement is made. Hours, behavior, and activities related to social events shall be reasonable and proper as determined by the administration. Only those students who have demonstrated their willingness to abide by the established rules and to recognize the authority and responsibility of the school personnel shall be permitted to attend social functions.

Legal Reference:	20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683; 1685-1686 (1988). 34 C.F.R. Pt. 106.41 (1993). lowa <u>Code</u> §§ 216.9; 280.1314 (1995). 281 I.A.C. 12.6.
Cross Reference:	501 Student Attendance 502 Student Rights and Responsibilities 503 Student Discipline 504 Student Activities 507 Student Health and Well-Being
Approved 7/17/95	Reviewed 10/13/14 Revised 7/17/95

504.8 GUIDELINES FOR SETTING ADMISSION FEES AND HANDLING SCHOOL ACTIVITY PASSES

Building principals may distribute passes to their building's school-related activities that waive admission charges for selected individuals or groups.

School Activity Passes

Building Principals:

- 1. Will identify all other ages groups who must pay an admission charge and develop for Board approval admission charges, which comply with standards, established by conference membership.
- 2. Will establish written criteria for the issuing of activity passes.

The Board of Education recognizes the value to students participating in a broad spectrum of extra-curricular activities. Extra-curricular activities contribute to the total educational program and serve to promote community involvement and pride in the schools. Therefore, the Board authorizes the Superintendent to provide season activity tickets for a reduced ticket amount for students which will be reviewed by the Board of Education periodically in regard to expenses incurred for the activity program and finds necessary to sustain a vibrant coeducational program.

Child, Student, and Adult Admissions

For the purpose of establishing admission fees to school activities:

- 1. the category "child" will refer to children who are not yet attending kindergarten.
- 2. the category "student" will refer to all students who attend school at the kindergarten (K) through twelfth (12th) grade level.
- 3. individuals attending post high school courses of study will not be eligible for "student" admissions and must pay the "adult" admission.
- 4. the category "adult" will refer to all individuals who are not eligible for either the "child" or "student" category.
- 5. the category "Senior Citizen" will refer to all individuals who are 65 years old or older.

Approved: 7/17/95	Reviewed	10/13/14	Revised: 7/17/95	
Legal References:		s of Pekin High § 279.8 (1995).	n School v. Tharp, 154 N.W.2c	l 874 (Iowa 1967).
	34 C.F.R. P	^v t. 106.41 (1993 §§ 216.9; 280. 1		

504.9 CLASS FUNDS

Class funds (95, 96, etc.) are accumulated under authority of the school board. Such monies shall be expended to meet school/student related needs and the desires of the class when approved by the class, the advisor, and the building principal or his/her designee.

Prior to the time of graduation, the Senior Class will decide the disposition of all class funds. It may be appropriate to select a gift to the school or institute a scholarship from the class. This decision shall be decided by a majority vote of the class members present at a regularly scheduled class meeting. A graduating senior class must have in its treasury a minimum of \$100.00 over and above the amount necessary to cover all known outstanding bills. All funds in the accounts after graduation will be transferred to another activity fund.

All funds on hand and unencumbered after the class graduation shall become the property of the school district and shall be transferred to the appropriate activity fund account.

Any funds in the activity accounts earned by clubs which cease to function shall, after the period of one (1) calendar year, be transferred to the general fund or may be transferred to other activity accounts upon the approval of the Superintendent.

Legal Reference:	20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683; 1685-1686 (1988). 34 C.F.R. Pt. 106.41 (1993). lowa Code §§ 216.9; 280.1314 (1995). 281 I.A.C. 12.6. lowa Code §§ 11.23; 279.8 (1995)
Cross Reference:	501 Student Attendance 502 Student Rights and Responsibilities 503 Student Discipline 504 Student Activities 507 Student Health and Well-Being 701 Financial Accounting System
Approved 7/17/95	Reviewed 10/13/14 Revised 10/12/09

710.4 MEAL CHARGES

In accordance with state and federal law, the Central Lyon Community School District adopts the following policy to ensure school district employees, families, and students have a shared understanding of expectations regarding meal charges. The policy seeks to allow students to receive the nutrition they need to stay focused during the school day, prevent the overt identification of students with insufficient funds to pay for school meals, and maintain the financial integrity of the nonprofit school nutrition program.

Payment of Meals

Students and staff members deposit money into their school meal account daily, weekly, monthly or by semester. All students and staff are assigned an account number. The student/staff member will key in their personal account number on a keypad and a school employee will monitor the computer to assure that the correct account is charged. Student/staff meal accounts must be kept at a positive balance at all times.

Exempt From Impact

A student who is approved for free meals cannot be denied a meal no matter what the balance is and a student, that has cash to pay the price of the meal that day, cannot be denied a meal even if the payment does not completely put the account in a positive balance. The cashier or building secretary will discretely notify students/staff when a low or negative balance is pending. Email notifications are sent out weekly. If the household does not have e-mail access, the household will be contacted by a phone call and/or by mail.

Negative Account Balances

The school district will make reasonable efforts to notify families when meal account balances are low. Additionally, the school district will make reasonable efforts to collect unpaid meal charges classified as delinquent debt. Students and parents will be notified with a memo and/or an email notification generated by the building secretary when the family meal account will be depleted in 5 days or less (or less than \$6.00).

If a lunch account reaches a negative balance of \$20.00 or more, the student will receive an alternate cold lunch. Students/staff will not be allowed to charge a second meal or ala carte item when the lunch account has a negative balance. This policy applies to both breakfast and lunch accounts. The alternate cold lunch will be served on a tray as all other students and be compliant with a reimbursable meal and be charge to the lunch account balance. Special diet accommodations must be made for students with doctor's instructions.

Since the HS charges the meal at the end of the lunch line, the servers will be notified which students are required to have the alternative meal and the servers will give them the alternative meal as they go through the line. In the EL/MS building the cashier is at the beginning of the line. These students will be required to pick up their meal in the EL/MS office which is located next to the cashier.

Delinquent accounts

Negative balances not paid prior to the end of the school year will be turned over to the superintendent or superintendent's designee for collection. Options may include: collection agencies, small claims court, or any other legal method permitted by law.

Unpaid Student Meals Account

The district will establish an unpaid student meals account in a school nutrition fund. Funds from private sources and funds from the district flexibility account may be deposited into the unpaid school meals account in accordance with law. Funds deposited into this account shall be used only to pay individual student meal debt.

Communication of the Policy

The policy and supporting information regarding meal charges shall be provided in writing to:

- All households at or before the start of each school year;
- Students and families who transfer into the district, at time of transfer; and
- All staff responsible for enforcing any aspect of the policy.

Records of how and wh be retained.	nen the policy and supporting information was communicated to households and staff will	
It is the responsibility of	the superintendent to develop administrative regulations for implementing this policy.	
Legal Reference:	42 U.S.C. §§ 1751 et seq.	
Logar Kororonoc.	7 C.F.R. §§ 210 et seq.	5)
	U.S. DEP'T OF AGRIC., SP 46-2016, UNPAID MEAL CHARGES: LOCAL MEAL CHARGE POLICIES (2016) U.S. DEP'T OF AGRIC., SP 47-2016, UNPAID MEAL CHARGES: CLARIFICATION ON COLLECTION	э).
	OF DELINQUENT MEAL PAYMENTS (2016). U.S. DEP'T OF AGRIC., SP 57-2016, UNPAID MEAL CHARGES: GUIDANCE AND Q&A (2016).	
	Iowa Code 283A. 281 I.A.C. 58.	
Cross Reference:	710.1 School Food Program	
	710.2 Free or Reduced Cost Meals Eligibility710.3 Vending Machine	
Approved		